United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form

For NPS use only

received MAR

date entered

6 1985 APR 4 1

4 1985

See instructions in *How to Complete National Register Forms*Type all entries—complete applicable sections

Type all entries	s—complete applicab	le sections		
1. Nam	1e			
historic	Paramount Theatre	and Office Building		
	,	and office buttuting		
and or common 2. Loca				
2. 200				
street & number	516 State Stre	et	N/	A not for publication
city, town	Bristol	N/A vicinity of		
state	Tennessee c	ode 047 county	Sullivan	code 163
3. Clas	sification			
Category district _X_ building(s) structure site object	Ownership public _X_ private both Public Acquisition N/A in process being considered	Status occupied unoccupied _X work in progress Accessible yes: restricted _X_ yes: unrestricted no	Present Useagriculturecommercialeducational _X_entertainmentgovernmentindustrialmilitary	museum park private residence religious scientific transportation other:
4. Own	er of Prop	erty		
name T	haatus Dužatai			
	heatre Bristol			
street & number		Building, 522 State	Street	
city, town	Bristol	N/A vicinity of	state	Tennessee 37620
5. LOC	ation of Le	gal Descripti	ion	
courthouse, regi	stry of deeds, etc.	Sullivan County Cou	rthouse	·
street & number		Public Square		
city, town		Blountville	state	Tennessee 37617
6. Rep	resentatio	n in Existing	Surveys	
itle N/A		has this pr	operty been determined el	ligible?yes _X_ no
	•			te county local
			N/ H Teneral Sta	county local
depository for su	rvey records N/A			
city, town N	/A		state	N/A

ruins	Check oneX unaitered altered	Check oneX_ original site moved date	
		Check one deterioratedX unaltered ruins altered	Check one Check one deterioratedX unalteredX_ original site ruins altered moved date

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

7. Description

The Paramount Theatre and Office Building are located in Bristol (pop. 24,900) in northeast Tennessee at 516 State Street, a street which separates the twin cities of Bristol, Tennessee and Bristol, Virginia (pop. 18,800). Both buildings face due north to the Virginia state line. Although the theatre was built in 1930 for use primarily as a showplace for motion pictures, in its early years it was also the site of numerous vaudeville and big band performances. The office building, also constructed around the same era, is adjacent to the theatre on the west.

The two and one half story split level theatre consists of an outer lobby that is one story with a flat asphalt roof while to the south and perpendicular to the outer lobby, the rest of the theatre is two-storied. The inner lobby, lounges and auditorium floor comprise the first floor, while offices, the projection room and the tall auditorium ceiling are located on the second story. The roof over the two-story section of the theatre is a grooved-concrete tile A-frame with steel crossbeam supports.

The north (front) elevation of the theatre displays one of the finest Art Deco facades in northeast Tennessee. Dominated by a large marquee surmounted by a large vertical "Paramount" neon sign, the major materials employed are structural terra cotta and glass. The main level exterior, below the marquee, is faced with mottled ivory structural terra cotta blocks. The upper level consists of fluted vertical panels of vermillion and green terra cotta with wider bands of black carreraglass between them. The facade ornamentation crowns the upper level in a stepped pyramid pattern, with the terra cotta panels remaining vertical and the carrera glass panels tapering towards the rear of the building. This cascade effect, expressed so well in the Paramount Theatre, was a popular Art Deco motif.

Eight wood framed glass doors lead into the front outer lobby, an area highlighted by a terrazo floor, plaster walls with cloth backed wall covering and a plaster ceiling with hand painted Art Deco designs in geometric and stylized floral motifs. Also featured are eight large poster showcases and two full length mirrors. Light fixtures are stained glass in brass framings. A concession stand was added in the center of the lobby in about 1940.

At the southern end of the outer lobby was another set of eight doors leading to an inner lobby. Identical to the front doors, this second set was removed in about 1950. Seven of the eight doors still exist and are stored in the theatre basement. The inner lobby, which was re-carpeted c. 1950, also features plaster walls with cloth-backed wallcovering. It is distinguished by a hand-painted plaster-mold cornice and water fountain, both with a stylized floral motif, and another set of stained glass and brass frame light fixtures.

The men's and ladies' lounges are parallel and to the north of the inner lobby. The tile work in the men's lounge and in the ladies' and men's rest rooms is original but the carpet in the ladies' lounge was replaced c. 1950. The unique set of brass vanities which line the north wall of the ladies' lounge are original. Both the vanities and wall covering repeat the geometric and floral theme of decor found throughout the theatre.

The auditorium itself features an arched plaster ceiling with plaster-covered support beams decorated with stylized floral plaster-mold designs. The wall panels between the support arches are adorned by six frescoes with a theatrical theme. The proscenium arch is flanked east and west by two plaster-mold parapets that are backed by cloth panels which covered the original organ pipe wells. (The organ and pipes were removed prior to 1950.) The stage area is dominated by a large Cinema Scope motion picture screen which is not original. The

United States Department of the Interior National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places Inventory—Nomination Form



Continuation sheet

Paramount Theatre and Office Building

Item number

age

auditorium seats are original, though many have been reupholstered over the years. Of the 1250 seats originally in the auditorium, approximately 30 have been removed from the front row. These are now stored in the exit halls in the south end of the auditorium. Though new carpet was placed in the auditorium concurrent with the lobby (c. 1950), the exit halls are still covered with the original carpet design. They open to an alley which lies at the southern end of the structure.

The basement of the theatre lies under the lounges and the inner lobby. It is dominated by a large coal-fired boiler (not original) which is used for heating.

Stairways from the inner lobby lead to the second floor of the theatre, which is located directly above the inner lobby, the lounges and a small section of the outer lobby. The upstairs contains several small office spaces and the projection room.

The office building adjacent to the theatre is a two story structure with multi-pane windows and a geometric pattern motif ornamenting the second story. In design and ornamentation the office building complements the more dominant theatre structure. Both buildings, but especially the theatre, have maintained a high degree of architectural integrity.

8. Significance

Period prehistoric 1400–1499 1500–1599 1600–1699 1700–1799 1800–1899 1900–	• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	conservation economics	landscape architectur law literature military music t philosophy politics/government	re religion science sculpture social/ humanitarian theater transportation other (specify)
Specific dates	1930	Builder/Architect M	c Don ald and Company	

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph)

The Paramount Theatre & Office Building is nominated under National Register criterion C for its importance as one of the finest remaining Art Deco style movie theaters in the northeast Tennessee region. The building retains most of its original Art Deco features including the grand marquee, brightly painted frieze moldings, light fixtures, wallpaper and frescos. No significant changes have been made to the exterior and only cosmetic alterations have been made on the interior therefore the Paramount Theatre retains its architectural integrity and is representative of the co-ordination of interior and exterior design found in the Art Deco style. The adjacent office building, also built by Paramount, is similar in style and age and complements the larger structure. The office building has also maintained its architectural integrity.

Designed by McDonald and Company, architects and engineers from Atlanta, Georgia and originally owned by the Bristol Theatre Corporation, the Paramount Theatre opened in February 1931, when the country was in the midst of the Great Depression. Before World War II, traveling vaudeville shows and Big Bands with leaders such as Harry James appeared on the stage at the Paramount, however the primary source of revenue was always from first run movies. Various subsidiaries of ABC Paramount leased the structure and the building operated as a movie theater until October 1979 when the Paramount Theatre closed due to increased maintenance costs and decreased traffic flow.

The Paramount Church occupied the building from 1979 until the lease ran out in 1980 and the property reverted back to the ownership of Harry Daniel, a local Bristol businessman. Mr. Daniel donated the building to Theatre Bristol in 1983. This local theatre group plans to restore the building for use as a community preforming arts center.

The Paramount Theatre is a fine example of an Art Deco theatre from the late-1920s-early-1930s period. Exterior decorative elements employed include the use of structural terra cotta in ivory, vermillion and green with black carrera glass vertical panels on the upper stories of the north (front) elevation. The large marquee with a vertical neon sign is also displayed on this elevation. The interior retains many of its original features including lighting fixtures, large wood framed glass front doors, wallpaper, frescoes, and drinking fountains. The exuberance of color and pattern used on the outsideand interior of this theatre make it the finest example of an Art Deco style theatre in this city if not the region.

9. M	ajor Bibl	iograph	ical	Refere	nces	······································		
Cult Bristol	inda. <u>Paramo</u> ural and Econd Chamber of Co Mr. Hicks. Pe	omic Developm ommerce, 1949	ent Four Prospec	ndation, 19 ctus. Bris	83.	•		r Ashland Area
10. (Geograp	hical Da	ıta					
•	nominated proper e name <u>Bristol</u> ences	•	one acr	e.	Q	uadrangle sc	ale <u>1:2</u>	4000
A	3 9 4 1 8 0 Easting	410 510 317 Northing	교 니 니	B Zone D H	Easting Light	Nor	thing	
bounded by adjo	undary description the north ining property the arcandary and counties are and counties are and counties and counties and counties and counties and counties and	by State Str 1 lines. Thi	The eet, on s is all	the west b	y Bank Str rty histor	reet, and rically as	on the	n shape and is south and eas d with the
state	N/A	code	N/A	county	N/A		code	N/A
tate	N/A	code	N/A	county	N/A		code	N/A
11. F	orm Pre	pared E	By					
name/title	Rick McVe	ey/Producing	Director	•				
organizatio	n Theatre E	Bristol			date July	13, 1984		
treet & nu	mber #10 Paran	nount Buildin	g, 522 S	State St.	telephone	(615)	968-497	7
ity or towr	n Bristol				state Tenn	essee 37	620	
12. \$	State His	storic P	reser	vation	Office	er Cer	tific	ation
he evaluat	led significance of	this property with	nin the stat	e is:				
	national	state	X	_ local				
665), I herel according t Deputy	gnated State Histo by nominate this p to the criteria and p ric Preservation Of	roperty for inclus procedures set for	ion in the f	National Regist	er and certify	ation Act of 1 that it has be	966 (Publ en evalua	ic Law 89– ted
itle Exec	utive Director	r. Tennessee	Historia	al Commiss	<i>U</i> ion	date $2/$	19/85	
For NPS	use only					/		
I nere	by certify that this	property is includ		vational Hegist stered in T		date	Mals	- -
Keeper	of the National Re	gister		tional Reg	i stor	date	7/ 1/0	<u> </u>
Attest:						date		
	Registration					34.0		
GPO 894-7	15							

